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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Indian Furniture Products Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Indian Furpiture Products
Limited (“the Company”™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our

~audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial conirol relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprlate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion. :
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Basis for qualified opinion

Loans and advances in Note 12 to the financial statements include Rs. 112.5 million (Previous year —
Rs. 112.5 million), representing intercompany deposits and interest thereon upto March 31, 2010
recoverable from Straight Curve Ideas Private Limited (*SCIPL”). As more fully discussed in Note 30
to the financial statements, the Company has initiated legal proceedings against SCIPL, and is
confident of recovery of the amount outstanding, In view of the legal uncertainties involved, we are
unable to comment on the possible adjustments, if any, that may be required to be made to the
financial statements in this regard. Our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2014 was also qualified in respect of this matter.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, of its profit/loss and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and, except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) Except for the possible effects of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report ate in agreement with the books of account;

{d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may
- have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

(f) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013;

(gy The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounis and other matiers connected therew1th
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, =
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  To the extent discussed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the Company
has not recorded the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W
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per Aniruddh Sankaran
Partner )
Membership Number: 211107

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015
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Annexure referred to in paragraph I under the section ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date

Re: Indian Furniture Products Limited (‘the Company?)

H (@
(b)

(i) ()
(b)
©

(i) (a)
(b)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year.

The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. Discrepancies noted on
physical verification of inventories were not material, and have been properly dealt with
in the bools of account,

The Company has granted loans that are re-payable on demand, to a firm covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The loans granted are
re-payable on demand. We are informed that the company has not demanded repayment
of any such loan during the year, and thus, there has been no default on the part of the
parties to whom the money has been lent. The payment of interest has been regular.

There is no overdue amount of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of
goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major
weakness or continuing failure to correct any major weakness in the internal control
system of the company in respect of these areas.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified
the maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the

products of the Corpany. RS

|
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(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax,
service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable
to it. Undisputed statutory dues pertaining to sales-tax and value added tax have not
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though the delays in
deposit have not been serious.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax,
service tax, sales-fax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

{¢y According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax,
wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess on account
of any dispute, are as follows:

Statute Nature  of | Amount (in | Period to | Forum - where

dues millions) which amount | dispute is pending
relates -

‘West  Bengal | Sales Tax 1.97 2003-04 West Bengal

Sales Tax Act, Appellate and

1941 (1.97) Revision Board

West  Bengal | Value added | 0.74% 2006-07 Joint Commissioner

Sales Tax Act, | Tax {Appeals)

1941 {0.74) ,

Finance Act, | Service Tax | 9.00%* 2005-07 CESTAT

1994 (9.00)

Finance Act, Service Tax | 0.20 2004-11 Commissioner

1994 {.20) (Appeals)

Finance Act, Service Tax | 2.91 2007-08 CESTAT

1994 {2.91)

West  Bengal | Sales Tax 5.90 2004-05 Joint

Sales Tax Act, (5.90) Commissioner,

1941 ' ' (Appeals)

Uttar Pradesh | Sales Tax 0.27%%% 2012-13 Additional

Sales tax Act, (0.27) Commissioner,

1948 (Appeals)

West Bengal | Sales Tax 0.36 2001-02 Deputy

Sales Tax Aet, | (0.36) Cominissioner

1941 {Appeals)

West Bengal | Sales Tax 0.76 2003-04 Revision board

Sales Tax Act, | (0.76)

1941

West Bengal | Sales Tax 0.39 2009-10 Commercial — Tax

Sales Tax Act, (0.39) Appellate Authority

1941

Kerala VAT | Sales Tax | 1.69 *¥** | 2009-11 Deputy

Act, 2003 (1.69) Commissioner

{Appeals)

* Amount includes deposit made under protest- Rs. .74 R S
*# Amount includes deposit made under protest- Rs. 2,12 = j«x’f/ ok

*#% Amount includes deposit made under protest- Rs. 0.27 ‘ "'i‘ '



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(d)

(viii)

(ix)

0

(D)

(xi{)

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

k% Amount includes deposit made under protest- Rs. 0.47
Figures in brackets are in respect of the previous year

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of investor
edycation and protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereunder are not applicable to the
comparty.

Without considering the consequential effects, if any, of the matter(s) stated in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph of our auditors’ report, the Company’s accumulated
losses at the end of the financial year are more than fifty percent of its net worth and it
has incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year,

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has given
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks, the terms and conditions whereof, in our
opinion, are not prima-facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company. According to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for
loans taken by others from financial institutions.

Based on the information and explanations given to us by the management, term loans
were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

We have been informed that, during the year under audit, there have been seven instances
of fraud on the Company in the nature of misappropriation of funds and inventory
aggregating Rs. 5,828,326, The Company has dismissed the employees and withheld
their terminal benefits amounting to Rs. 805,279, Investigations are in progress, pending
which the Company has made a provision for the balance amount of Rs, 5,023,04

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W
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per Anirnddh Sankaran

Partner
Membership

Number: 211107

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015




Indian Furniture Products Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

{All amounts are in Indian rupees unless otherwise stated )

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders funds

Share capital

Reserve and surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
Long- term borrowings
Deferred tax liability (net)
Long- term provisions

Current liabilities
Short - term borrowings
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Short term provisions

Total

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Fixed assets
Tangible asset
Intangible asset
Loans and advances
Other non - current assets

Current Assets
Current Investments

Inventories

Trade receivables -
Cash and bank balances
Leans and advances
Other current assets

Total

Summary of significant accounting polices

Notes

(¥

11
11a
11b
12
13

14
15
16
17
12
18

2.2

As at
March 31, 2015

As at
March 31, 2014

700,994,700 465,000,800
(688,626,147) (230,492,001)
12,368,553 234,508,799
44,688,882 48,094,126
16,934,502 10,434,326
61,623,384 58,528,452
530,271,488 413,795,628
283,814,908 228,585,749
214,004,478 82,164,206
15,906,714 8,919,088
1,043,997,588 733,464,671

1,117,989,525

1,026,501,922

211,987,540 201,131,011
4,201,482 1,857,239
60,582,939 20,171,757
8,627,906 ' .
285,399,867 223,160,007
1,250,010 -
480,998,811 389,397,911
131,163,043 267,999,671
65,220,260 13,781,547
153,203,215 131,504,863
754,319 657,923
832,589,658 803,341,915

1,117,989,525

1,026,501,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our teport of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number: 101049W
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Aniruddh Sankaran
Partner P
Membership No: 211107 7

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015

-~ N
Simi.S.S
Company Secretary
Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 20153

For and on behalf of the Board of Indian

Furniture Products Limited

h Kumar
Whole Time Director

R.S.Raghav
Director
A.T.Sudh%

Chief Financial Officer



Indiar Ferniture Products Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
INCOME )
Revenue from operations (gross) 1,435,594,911 1,226,600,280
Less: Excise duty (94,978,583) (81,530,945)
Revenue from operations (net) 19 1,340,616,328 1,145,069,335
Other income 20 9,818,728 733,748
Total Revenue (A) 1,350,435,056 1,145,803,083
EXPENSES
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 21 332,037,445 387,315,078
Purchase of traded goods 21 257,440,616 391,228,199
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 22 32,292,450 (20,081,608)
Employee benefits expenses 23 253,822,346 138,559,011
Net depreciation and amortisation expenses 24 38,097,775 23,105,519
Finance costs 25 05,390,884 72,672,932
Other expenses 26 477,201,663 227,708,691
Total Expenses (B) 1,486,283,179 1,220,507,822
Loss before tax (135,848,123) (74,704.739)
Tax expenses
Current tax - -
Current tax adjustment - relating to earlier years - (413,306)
Loss for the year (135,848,123) (74,291,433)
Earnings per share [Nominal value of share Rs.10
(March 31,2014 : Rs.10)]
Basic and diluted 27 (1.94) (2.24)
Summary of significant accounting polices 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration numper: 101049W

For and on behalf of the Board of Indian Furniture
Products Limited
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Aniruddh Sankaian Pervebh Kumar Gandhi R.S.Raghav el
Partner Wholﬁ Time Director Director="""
Membership No: 211107 /gl .

LA/
Simi.S.S A.T.Sudhakaran
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015



Indian Furnitere Products Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian rupees unless otherwise stated )

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

Year ended
March 31,2015

Year ended
March 31, 2014

Net profit/(loss) before taxation (135,848,123) (74,291,433)
Adjustments for:

(Profit) / Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 1,918,765 860,599
Depreciation /Amortisations on Tangible & Intangible Assets 38,097,775 23,105,519
Unrealised exchange difference (net) 5,853 (3,181,999)
Interest expense 76,156,419 62,956,219
Interest Income (3,152,594) (544,334}
Bad debtsfadvances written off 6,909,089 1,036,341
Operating profit before working capital changes (15,912,816) 9,940,912
Adjustment for :

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 48,853,179 (13,431,608)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables 161,869,431 (98,390,418)
(Increase)/Drecrease in Short term Loans and advances (9,117,429) 3,758,257
(Increase)/Decrease in Long term Loans and advances 9,272,714 2,416,148
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables (164,999,427) 10,333,193
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets 565,388 -
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liabilities 64,254,026 (4,328,252
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities and Provisions (4,385,252) {2,065,445)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 106,312,630 (101,708,125)
Cash penerated from / (used in) operations 90,399,814 (91,767,213)
Direct taxes paid {480,908) {90,822)
Net cash from / (used) in operating activities 89,918,906 (91,858,035)
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets, including Intangible assets & Capital Advances (18,527,087) (1,532,600)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1,310,303 804,558
Investmert in bank deposit (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (30,925,392) (604,963)
Investment in subsidiary (1,250,010) -
Interest received 3,152,594 408,783
Net cash from / (used) in investing activities (46,239,592) (924,222)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities

Long term borrowings repaid (5,393,130) (22,500,000)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 28,000,441
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital - 35,000,000
Inter Corporate Deposit received 40,000,000 -
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net (42,190,021) 107,354,439
Interest paid (73,182,487) (62,486,743)
Net Cash flows from / (used) in Financing Activities (80,765,638) 85,368,137
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (37,086,324)

(7,414,120)



Indian Furaiture Products Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended Mareh 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian rupees unless otherwise stated )

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2.1(b))
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at year end
Cash in hand

Balances with scheduled banks

- in current accounts

- in deposit accounts

Less: Deposits having original maturity of more than 3 months

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

FCAI Firm Registration number: 101049W
o . |

e T
/ P 1. . e
Ahiruddh Sankaran—"
Partner '

Membership No: 211107

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015

Year ended
March 31,2015

Year ended
March 31,2014

78,393,136 16,285,984
41,306,812 8,871,864
4,363,596 152,788
27,302,125 8,719,076
42,182,445 4,909,683
73,848,166 13,781,547
(32,541,354) (4,909,683)
41,306,812 8,871,864

For and on behalf of the Board of Indian

Furniture Products Limited

Whole Time Director

Simi.S.$
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015
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Pervgsh Kumar Gandhi
Director

A.T.Sutgakaran

Chief Financial Officer

R.S. Raghavan |



Indian Furniture Produets Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

1, Corporate information

Indian Furniture Products Limited is a subsidiary of Zuari Global Limited (Formerly Zuari Industries Limited), domiciled in India, The Company is
engaged in manufacturing and trading Ready to Assemble Furniture (RTAF), The company markets the product under the brand name of Style Spa and
Zuari,

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 (2) Operational outlook

As at March 31, 2015, the Company's accumulated losses of Rs. 693,959,547 has nearly ereded approxitately 97% of the shareholders' funds of Rs.
706,328,100, Management believes that its business plans for the future are profitable and would strengthen the financiat position of the Cofnpany in the
coming years. The Company continues to focus its immediate efforts on developing a healthy sales order pipeline and also effectively managing liquidity
and financing requirements. Further, Zuari Global Limited, the holding company, intends to provide financial and operational suppert in the foreseeable
future to enable the Company to operate and settle its obligations as they become due. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared ot a
going concern assumption and do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of carrying amounts of assets and the amount
of liabilities that might result should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

2.1 (b) Amalgamation with Style Spa Furniture Limited

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 23, 2013 approved the schene of amalgamation of Style Spa Furntiure Limited ("SSFL"} with the
Company with the appointed date as Aprit 01, 2014 {*Scheme of Amalgamation’). The Scheme of Amalgamation was sanctioned by an order dated March
27, 2014, of the High Court of Judicature of Madras effective from April 1, 2014, The Company has accounted for the merger as per the terms of the
scheme of amalgamation, as more fully disclosed in Note 38,

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India {Indian GAAP), The
company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Cornpanies {Accounts) Rules 2014, The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual
basis and under the historical cost convention,

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year except for the change in accounting
policy explained below.

Change in accounting policy
a, Depreciation on Fixed assefs

Tili the year ended 31 March 2014, Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956, prescribed requirements concerning depreciation of fixed assets. From the
current year, Schedule XIV has been replaced by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, The applicability of Schedule II has resulted in the following
changes related to depreciation of fixed assets. Unless stated otherwise, the impact mentioned for the current year is likely to hold good for future years
also,

(i) Useful lives/ depreciation rates

Till the year ended 31 March 2014, depreciation rates preseribed under Schedule XTV were treated as minimum rates and the company was not allowed to
charge depreciation at lower rates even if such lower rates were justified by the estimated useful life of the asset, Schedule II to the Comparndes Act 2013
prescribes useful tives for fixed assets which, in many cases, are different from lives prescribed under the erstwhile Schedule XIV, However, Schedule II
allows companies to use higher/ lower useful lives and residual values if such useful lives and residual values can be technically supported and justification
for difference is disclosed in the financial statements,

Considering the applicability of Schedule It, the management has re-estimated useful lives and residual vafues of all its fixed assets. Had the Company
continued its earlier policy of depreciation based on Schedule XIV rates, profits for the current year would have been lower by Rs. 7,306,016,




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

atherwise)

(ii) Depreciation on assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/-

Till year ended 31 March 2014, to comply with the requirements of Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, the company was charging 100%
depreciation on assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/ in the year of purchase. However, Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013, applicable from the current
year, does not recognize such practice. Hence, to comply with the requirement of Schedule IF to the Companies Act, 2013, the company has changed its
accounting policy for depreciations of assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/-. As per the revised policy, the company is depreciating such assets over their
useful life as assessed by the management. The management has decided to apply the revised accounting policy prospectively from accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 April 2014,

The change in accounting for depreciation of assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/~ did not have any material impact on financial statements of the company
for the current year.

b, Use of estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assutnptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the resulis of operations during the
reporting period, Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods,

¢, Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost
aftributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its infended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing paris, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

d. Depreciation on Fixed assets

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives as per Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fixed assets,

Block of Assets Useful lives
Buildings 3ta 30
Plant and machinery 10to 13
Computers 3to6
Fumiture and fittings 10
Display Furniture 10
Office equipments 5
Electrical Installations 10
Vehicles 8to 0
Lease Hold Improvement 3
Software 3

Intangible assets in the nature of computer software are amortised over three years on a straight-line basis based on management's estimates.



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

e, Leases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized
at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct
costs of lease are capitalized,

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will
obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset or the lease term.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

f, Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are
classified as current investments, All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

On initial recognition, alf investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as
brokerage, fees and duties, Tf an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of
the securities issued. If an investment is acquired in exchange for another asset, the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair value of the asset
given up or by reference to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is more clearly evident.

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis, Long-ferm
investtments are carried at cost, However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments,

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and et disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and
loss.

¢, Inventories
Inventories are vaiued at the lower of cost and net realisable value ,

The cost of various categories of inventories are determined as follows:

{a) Stores and spares, raw materials and packing materials: at moving weighted average basis.

(b) Work-in-progress and finished goods: Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capacity, Cost of finished goods includes excise duty, Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and ret realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present focation and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale,
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h. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,
Revenues are stated net of sales tax, VAT and sales returns.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on
the delivery of the goods. The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the goveriment and, therefore, these are not
economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Excise duty deducted from revenue (gross) is the amount that is
included in the revenue (gross) and not the entire amount of liability arising during the year,

Income from services

Service income is recognised as and when the services
are performed using percentage of completion method.

Interest
Revenue is recognised on 2 time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included
under the head “other income™ in the statement of profit and loss.

i. Foreign currency transiation

(i) Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

() Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary ifems, which are measured in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which
are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value
was determined.

(iii} Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting compaty's monetary items at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the year , or reported il previous financial statement, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise
except those arising from investments in non- integral operation,

j- Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to
the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service, Contributions to the provident fund are made monthly at a predetermined rate.

The company operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees, viz., gratuity scheme. The costs of providing benefits under this plan is determined on
the basis of actuarial vatuation at each year-end, Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each plan using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial
gains and losses for both defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss, Gratuity scheme
is not funded.




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The company measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additionat amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date. Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long
term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation, The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit methed. Such long-
term compensaled absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses
are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settiement for 12 months after reporting date.

k. Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Provision for current income tax is made on assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant
assessment year, Deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences atiributable to timing differences between the financial statement
determination of income and their recognition for tax purposes.

Defesred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised oaly to the extent tat there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised. If the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convineing evidence that such deferred tax assets can be realised against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. [t recognises unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it
has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred
tax assets can be realised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case
may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

L Segment Répnrting

The Comparty considers business segment as its primary segment. The company's operations predominantly relates to sale of fumitures and accordingly,
this is the only primary reportable segment, The company considers geographical segment as its secondary segment. The company's operations are
predominantly within India and accordingly this is the secondary reportable segment.

m, Earning Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

1. Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle (he obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimete can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined
based on best estitnate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates. IR




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

0. Warranty Provision - Product Warranty

Provisions for warranty-related cosis are recognized when the product is sold or service provided. Provision is based on historical experience. The estimate
of such warranty-related costs is revised annually. The Company gives warranty to products, undertaking to repair or replace the items that fail to perform
satisfactorily during the warranty period. Warranty provisicns are made for expected future cash outflows and computed on total sales made during the
year based on past experience, No reimbursements are expected.

p. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence oz non-oceurrence of ane or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannct be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
staternents,

q. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpeses of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity
of three meonths or less.

r. Amalgamation accounting

The company treats an amalgamation in the nature of merger if it satisfies all the following criteria:

(i) All the assets and liabilities of the transferor company become, after amalgaination, the assets and Habilities of the transferee company.

(i) Shareholders holding not less than 90% of the face value of the equity shares of the transferor company (other than the equity shares already held
therein, immediately before the amalgamation, by the transferee company or its subsidiaries or their nominees) become equity shareholders of the
transferee company. .

(iif) The consideration for amalgamation receivable by those equity shareholders of the transferor company who agree to become shareholders of the
transferee company is discharged by the transferee company wholly by the issue of equity shares, except that cash may be paid in respect of any fractional
shares,

{iv) The business of the transferor company is intended to be carried on, after the amalgamation, by the transferee company.

{v) The transferee company does not intend to make any adjustment to the book values of the assets and liabilities of the transferor company, except to
ensure uniformity of accounting policies,

All other amalgamations are in the nature of purchase.

The company accounts for all amalgamations in the nature of merger using the pooling of interest method. The application of this method requires the
comparty to recognize any non-cash element of the consideration at fair vafue. The company recognizes assets, liabilities and reserves, whether capital or
reveaue, of the transferor company at their existing carrying amounts and in the same form as at the date of the amalgamation. The balance in the
statement of profit and loss of the transferor company is transferred to the general reserve. The difference between the amount recorded as share capital
issued, plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets, and the amount of share capital of the transferor company is adjusted in
reserves.

An amalgamation in the nature of purchase is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition/ amalgamation is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value. Other aspects of accounting are as below:

(i) The assets and liabilities of the transferor company are recognized at their fair values at the date of amalgamation. The reserves, whether capital or
revenue, of the transferor company, except statutory reserves, are not recognized.

{ii) Any excess consideration over the value of the net assets of the transferor company acquired is recognized as goodwill. If the amount of the
consideration is lower than the value of the net assets acquired, the difference is treated as capital reserve.

(iti) The goodwill arising on amalgamation is amortized to the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over its useful life not exceeding five
years. e




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

3. Share capital

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Authorised shares :
72,600,000 (March 31, 2014 49,600,000) equity shares 726,000,000 496,000,000

of Rs. 10/- each
1,130,220 ( March 31, 2014: Nil) preference Shares of 113,022,000
Rs. t00/- each

839,022,000 496,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fuily paid-up
70,099,470 (March 31, 2014: 46,500,080) equity shares 700,994,700 . 465,000,800
of Rs, 10/~ each, fully paid up
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share 700,994,700 465,000,800
capital
a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginring and at the end of the veporting period

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Particulars No. of shares Amount in Rs, No, of shares Amount in Rs.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 46,500,080 465,000,800 33,000,080 330,000,800
Issued during the year 23,599,390 235,993,900 13,500,000 135,000,000
Quistanding at the end of the year 703099,470 700,994,700 46,500,080 465,000,800

Note: March 31, 2014 includes 10,000,600 equity shares issued pursuant to conversion of Inter-corporate deposits from M/s Zuari Global Limited
aggregating Rs, 100,000,000 in to equity share capital..

The shares issued during the year have been issued pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation as referred to in Note 2.2

b. Terms / Rights attached to equity shares :
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the

event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢. Shares held by holding/nltimate holding company and/or their subsidinries/associntes and shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the
Company

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Name of the Shareholder No. of shares Amount in Rs. No, of shares Amount in Rs,
Zuari Global . Limited (formerly Zuari Industries
Limited) (72.45%) 50,785,714 507,857,140 46,500,080 465,000,800
Zuari Investment Ltd (10.05%) 7,044,643 70,446,430 - -
Adventz Investment Company Private Limited
1,42 - -

(10.09%) 7,071,429 70,714,290
Others (7.41%) ’ 5,197,684 51,976,840 - -

70,099,470 700,954,700 46,500,080 465,000,800

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above sharehalding represents both legal and beneficial cwnerships of shares

v
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d. Aggregate number of shares issued for

consideration other than cash March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant fo amalgamation for 23,599,390 -
23,599,390 -

4, Reserves and surplus

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Securities premium account
Balance as per the last financial statements 5,333,400 -

(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per the last financial statements (558,111,424) (156,200,568}
Add: (Net Loss) for the current year {135,848,123) (74,291,433)
Net deficit in (he statement of profit and loss (688,626,147) (230,492,001)

5. Long- term borrowings

Non-current portion Current portion
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

a. Term loans from banks 5,371,539 - 3,600,000 12,309,825
b. Working capital term loan (secured) 34,374,999 31,874,999 12,500,000 3,125,001
¢. Other loans

Deferred sales tax loan 4,942,344 16,219,127 11,276,786 14,064,731
Amount disclosed under the head "other current (27,376,786} (29,499,557)

liabilities" (note 10)

44,688,882 48,094,126 - -

Deferred sales tax scheme is interest free and payable in 96 monthly Instalments of amounts, which varies from month to month based on the actual
liability. The repayment had started from May 2008 onwards.

Term loan from bank was taken during the year 2011-12 and cariies an annual Inferest @13.50% - 13.75% [previous year [3.75%)] . The loan is repayable
in 48 equal instalments starting from April 2012 onwards. The term loan is secured against first charge on the immovable and movable fixed asset
purchased and consiructed under the term loan. The loan is also secured by hypothecation of entire inventory and trade receivables of the Company.
Further, the loan has been guaranteed by corporate puarantee of M/s.Zuari Global Limited (Formerly M/s.Zuari Industries Limited),

Working Capital Term Loan ("WCTL") from Axis bank was taken during the March 2014, and carries an annual Interest @13.50% - 14.00%. The loan
is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalment of Rs,1.04 million starting from January 2015, The WCLT is secured against paripasu first charge with
Ratnakar bank over the entire Current Assets of the company, both present and future, first charge over the movable fixed assets of the company funded
out of Axis Bank Term Loan (Second Paripassu charge will be ceded to secure WC Limit). Further, the loan has been guaranteed by corporate guarantee
of M/s.Zuari Global Limited (Fermerly M/s.Zuari Industries Limited), the holding company. g
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6. Deferved tax liability (Nef}

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of the difference between income 2,212,386 14,596,366
tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged

for the financiat reporting

2,212,386 14,596,366
Deferred iax asset
Impact of expenditure charged to statement of Profit 1,962,364 5,997,397
and Loss in the outrent year but allowed for tax
purposes on payment basis

Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss - 8,317,150

Provision for doubtful debts and advances -

Provision for warranties 250,022 281,819
2,212,386 14,596,366

Deferred tax linbility (Net) - -

The Campany follows Accounting Standard (AS 22) “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, as notified by Company Accounting Standards Rules, 2006. Due |
to losses, the Company has deferred tax asset with unabsorbed depreciation as a major component. However, deferred tax asset has been consider as nil |
and has been recognized only to the extent of deferred tax liability, since there is no convincing evidence which demonstrates virtual certainty of .
realization of such deferred tax asset in the near future, accordingly the Company has prudently decided not to recognize deferred tax asset on such timing :
differences. ,

7. Provisions

Long Term Short Term
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (Also refer note 37) 16,934,502 10,434,326 2,210,803 1,471,595

Provision for leave benefits - - 12,886,779 ) 6,578,889
16,934,502 10,434,326 15,097,582 8,050,484

Qther provisions

Provision for warranties - - 809,132 868,604
16,934,502 10,434,326 15,906,714 8,919,088

Movement in provisien for warranty

Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Balance at the beginning of the year 868,604 502,469

Add: Additions : 809,132 868,604

Less: Reversal of Provision made (868,604) (502,469)

Balance at the end of the period 809,132 868,604
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8. Short term borrewings

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

a. Cash credit from bank (secured) 378,639,672 343,981,569

b. Inter corporate deposits {unsecured and repayable on

demand)

- From Others 140,000,000 30,000,000

¢. Buyers Credit (Secured) 11,631,516 39,814,059
530,271,488 413,795,628

Cash credit from bank is secured against security on stocks and book debts and fixed assets as collateral. The cash credit is repayable on demand and
carries interest @ 13.75% p.a

The Company had received an inter corporate deposit from M/s. Simon India Limited of Rs.100,000,000 and M/s/ Duke Commerce Limited of Rs.
40,000,000 @ 13.5% interest in the year 2010-11 and the loan is repayable on demand.

Company has taken buyers credit for the import LC payment, Each BC will be payable to the buyers credit party with different agreed date along with
interest. Buyers credit is secured against first paripasu charges on all Current Assets of the company, both present and future, Holds first paripasu charge
on all movable fixed assets (except vehicles & movable fixed assets funded out of term Loan from Axis bank) of the company , both present and future,
Holds first pari passu charge on Land and factory building of the company located at G-106, SIDCO Industrial esite, Kakkalur, Tiruvallur, Tamilnadu.
Second paripasu charge on movable fixed assets funded out of term loan from Axis Bank Ltd. Further, the loan has been Guranteed by Unconditional and
Irrecoverable corporate gurantee of M/S Zuari Global Limited {Formerly M/s. Zuari Industries Limited),the holding company.

9, Trade payables

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Trade payables 283,814,508 228,585,749
(Refer Note 29 for details of dues to micro, small and
medium enterprises)

283,814,908 228,585,749

10. Other current liabilities

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Cutrent maturities of long-term borrowing (Refer note 27,376,786 29,499,557
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3,552,730 469,476
Advances received from customers and others 13,042,226 3,340,772
Advances received for sale of land 70,000,000 -
Seeurity deposits from dealers and employees 34,279,815 8,225,000
Others
TDS payable 2,572,223 819,865
Excise & service tax payable 19,803,483 13,314,202
Employee related payables ' 28,692,713 17,000,274
Sales Tax and VAT 14,684,502 9,495,060
214,004,478 82,164,206
ol
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12, Loans aand advances {Unsecured, considered
good)

Security Deposit
(A)

Inter Corporate Deposit (Refer Note 30)
(B)

Advances recoverable in cash or kind

(©
Others
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax}

Prepaid expenses
Loans to employee
Balances with customs, port trust and excise authorities

)]

Total (A+B+C+DY)

13. Other non - current assets

Non-Current Bank Balances

14, Current Investmenis

Investment in Soundarya IFPL Interiors Ltd.
125,001 shares (March 31, 2014: Nil) of Soundarya
IFPL Interiors Ltd @ Rs. [0 per share

15. Inventories

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Traded goods
Stores and spares
Packing materials

Non-Current Current
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
50,949,615 14,386,848 3,387,284 3,395,135
50,949,615 14,386,848 3,387,284 3,395,135
- 119,500,000 112,500,000
- 119,500,000 112,500,000
- - 15,372,958 5,599,578
- - 15,372,958 5,595.578
9,633,324 5,601,576 - -
173,592 8,039,016 5,448,177
- 9,741 639,432 711,065
- - 6,264,525 3,850,508
9,633,324 5,784,909 14,942,973 10,010,150
60,582,939 20,171,757 153,203,215 131,504,863
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
8,627,906 -
8,627,906 -
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1,250,010 -
1,250,010
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
60,174,271 79,499,877
1,803,338 448,742
171,148,109 180,303,226
231,059,434 111,477,214
15,805,970 16,551,831
1,007,689 1,117,021
480,998,811

389,397,911
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Detzils of Inventory - raw material

Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Particle boards 20,702,219 19,884,542

Decorative papers 10,133,099 26,052,284

Others 29,338,953 33,562,651
60,174,271 79,499,877

Details of inventory of traded goods
Furniture and accessories 231,059,434 111,477,214

Details of inventory of finished goods
Fumiture and accessories 171,148,109 180,303,226

16. Trade receivables

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment

Considered good, (Secured) 726,148 200,000
Considered good, (Unsecured) 19,284,918 5,841,267
Considered Doubtful, (Unsecured) 3,600,703 1,036,341
(A) 23,611,769 7,077,608
Other receivables
Considered good, (Secured) 6,739,601 5,260,126
Considered good, (Unsecured) 104,412,376 256,698,278
(B) 111,151,977 261,558,404
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables {C) (3,600,703) (1,036,341)
Total (A+B+C) 131,163,043 267,999,671

17. Cash and bank balances

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2014

Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks:
On Current accounts 17,887,508 3,683,216
Cheques / draft on hand 9,414,617 5,035,860
Cash on hand 4,363,596 152,788
31,665,721 8,871,864
Other bank balances
- Margin money deposits 9,641,091 4,909,683
- Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 31,197,812 -
- Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 1,343,542 -
73,848,166 13,781,547
Amount disclosed under non-current assets (Note 13) (8,627,906} -
65,220,260 13,781,547

Margin money deposits given s security
Margin money deposits with carrying amount of Rs.9,641,091 {(March 31, 2014 - Rs.4,909,683) are subject to first charge to secure the Company's Bank
Guarantee,

18, Other Current Assets

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 754,319 657,923
754,319 ) 657,923
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Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013
(Alf amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
19, Revenue from operations
Manufacturing sales 892,596,862 713,257,971
Traded sales 539,447,073 510,062,541
Service income 1,398,408 13,350
Other operating Revenue
Scrap sales 2,152,568 3,266,418
Revenue from operations (Gross) 1,435,594,911 1,226,600,280
1,435,594,911 1,226,600,280

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs, 94,978,583 (Mar 31, 2014, - Rs. 81,530,945) has been reduced from sales in the statement of
profit and loss  and excise duty on increase and decrease in stock amounting to Rs.2,769,309 (March 31 2014-Rs.4,762,539 ) has been

considered as (increase)/decrease stock.

Details of product sold - March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Finished goods sold
Furniture and related accessories 892,596,862 713,257,971
Traded goods sold
Furniture and related accessories 539,447,073 510,062,541
1,432,043 935 1,223,320,512
Details of service income
Instalation services 1,398,408 13,350
1,398,408 13,350
20, Other income
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Interest income 3,152,594 544,334
Other Non-operating income 6,666,134 189,414
9,818,728

733,748




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Tndian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

21, Cost of raw material and components consumed

Raw materials consumed:
Opening stock

Add : Purchases

Less: Closing stock

Packing materials consumed:
Opening stock

Add : Purchases

Less: Closing stock

22, (Increase)/decrease in inventories

Inventory at the end of the year
Work-in-progress

Traded goods

Finished goods

Excise duty on finished goods

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress

Traded goods

Finished goods

Excise duty on finished goods

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Details of inventory

Furniture and accessories:
Traded goods
Work-in-progress

Finished goods

23, Employee benefifs expenses

Salaries, wages, bonus and allowances
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (Also refer Note 37)
Staff welfare expenses

24. Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

25, Finance cost

Interest
- to banks
- fo others
Bank charges

March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
79,499,877 87,890,996
283,477,858 342,725,909
60,174,271 79,499,877
302,803,464 351,117,028
1,117,021 1,862,675
29,124 649 35,452,396
1,007,689 1,117,021
29,233 981 36,198,050
332,037,448 387,315,078
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1,803,338 448,742
231,059,434 111,477,214
171,148,109 180,303,226
8,925,060 11,694,369
412,935,941 303,923,551
448,742 2,174,490
252,782,054 129,728,052
180,303,226 135,482,493
11,694,369 16,456,908
445,228,391 283,841,943
32,292,450 (20,081,608)

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014

231,059,434 111,477,214

1,803,338 448,742
171,148,109 180,303,226
404,010,881 292,229,182

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014

229,072,600 121,950,150
11,760,557 5,485,669
1,848,064 2,260,817
11,141,125 8,862,375
253,822,346 138,559,011
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

34,410,269 21,226,894
3,687,506 1,878,625
38,097,775 23,105,519

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014

39,737,141 45,581,324
16,419,278 17,374,895
19,234,465 9,716,713
95,390,884 72,672,932




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

26. Other expenses

Power, fuel and water
Stores and consumables
Repairs and maintenance:
Buildings
Plan{ and machinery
Others
Qutward freight and handling
Commission
Rent
Bad debts /advances written off
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Travel
Legal and Professional Charges
Payment to auditors (Refer details below)
Communication expenses
Advertisement
Provision for warranties
Loss on foreign exchange (net)
Loss on sale of fixed asset (net)
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditor

As auditor:

- Statutory audit fees

- Tax audit fees

- Out of pocket expenses

27. Earnings / (Loss) per share

Loss after tax

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 10 each

Basic and diluted loss per share

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
33,227,361 20,981,987
8,370,748 10,735,212
1,327,619 1,015,221
1,613,239 1,890,843
23,014,283 3,829,470
93,930,623 73,026,327
10,698,932 15,672,000
156,348,496 32,484,364
6,909,089 1,036,341
12,119,175 4,785,015
8,266,801 4,816,819
21,531,624 9,388,213
6,964,439 11,924,118
1,310,960 750,000
8,173,600 1,767,967
69,924,174 22,559,636
809,132 868,604
336,302 78,685
1,918,765 860,599
10,406,301 9,237,268
477,201,663 227,708,691
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
1,011,240 650,000
224,720 100,000
75,000 -
1,310,960 750,000
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(135,848,123) (74,291,433)
70,099,470 33,221,998
(1.94) (2.24)




Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

28, Details of foreign curiency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise.

Particulars Currency Amount in foreign | Equivalent amount in Rs,
currency
Payables US Dollar 464,560 29,077,183
(903,191} (54,114,668)
EURO - -
(133,508) (11,039,139)
Receivables AED 780,881 13,105,030

Figures in brackets are in respect of the previous year

29, Disclosures on Micro, Small and Medium Enterpiises
There are no dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises which are out standing for more than 45 days as at Balance Sheet date and no
interest has been paid to any such parties during the year. This is based on the information available with the Company.

30. The Company had placed on January 1, 2009, a short term intercorporate Deposit (1CD) amounting to Rs 100 miltion for a period of 3
months with M/s Straight Curve Ideas Private Ltd (Straight Curve). The deposit carried an interest rate of 15% p.a and out of the
aggregate interest accrued from inception of deposit to March 31, 2010 of Rs. 18,328,767 Straight Curve has made payments (including
Tax Deducted at Source). aggregating to Rs.5,828,767, On account of the continuing default by Straight Curve in respect of payment of
principal and interest, the Company has suspended accruing for further interest with effect from April 1, 2010, Further the Company has
initiated legal proceedings for the recovery of the outstanding amount. The Company is of the view that based on the actions initiated,
personal guarantee provided by one of the directors of Straight Curve and pledge of shares of straight curve obtained as security, the
amount outstanding is fully recoverable and hence, i provision has been made in the financial statements in this regard. The management
believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the company's financial position and
results of operations,




Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes fo financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

31, Contingent liabilities

Statute Nature of Amount (In Period to which the amount |Forum where the dispute is
dues Millions) relates pending
West Bengal Sales tax Act, 1941 Sales tax 2003-2004 West Bengal Appellate and
L97 revision Board
(1.97)
Waest Bengal Sales tax Act, 194§ Value added 20062007 Joint Commissioner
0.74*
tax {Appeals)
(1.1%)
West Bengal Sales Tax Act 1941 Value added 0.36 2001-02 Deputy Commissioner
tax ‘ {Appeals)
{0.36)
West Bengal Sales Tax Act 1941 Value added 0.76 2003-04 Revision Board
fax '
(0.76)
West Bengal Sales Tax Act 1941 Value added 5.00 2004-05 Joint Comunissioner
tax ' (Appeals)
(5.90}
West Bengal Sales Tax Act 1941 Value added 0.39 2009-10 Commercial Tax Appellate
tax ' Authority
(0.39)
Kerala Vat Act, 2003 Value added Lggwies - 2009-11 Deputy Comimissioner
tax : ' (Appeals)
(1.69)
Uttar Pradesh Sales Act, 1948 Value added . ' 2012-13 Additional  Commissioner
tax 0.27 (Appeals)
0.27)
Finance Act, 1954 Service tax 0. 00** 2005-2007 CESTAT
(9.00)
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax (.20 2004 2011 Commissioner {(Appeals}
(0.20}
Finance Act, 1994 ’ Service tax 291 2007-08 CESTAT
(0.00)

* Amount includes deposits made under protest - Rs, 0,74 Million
“* Amount includes deposits made under protest - Rs, 2,12 Million
##* [ncludes Amount paid under protest : Rs. 0,03 Million
###x[ncludes amount paid under protest : Rs.0.47 Million

Figures in brackets are in respect of the previous year.

The Company is contesting the demands raised by the respective tax authorities and the management, including its tax advisers, believe
that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process and ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

There are 1o litigations, the outcore of which is considered probable and hence no provision has been made in this regard.




Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
{(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

32

(a) Percentage of indigenous / imported raw materials consumed to total raw materials consumed

March 31,2014

March 31,2015

Yo Rs. Yo Rs.
Indigenous 53.9% 163,234,102 44.4% 156,048,209
Imported 46.1% 139,569,362 55.6% 195,068,819
100,0% 302,803,464 100.0% 351,117,028
(b} Percentage of indigenous / imported consumption of stores and consumables consumed
Mavrch 31, 2015 March 31,2014
% Rs. % Rs,
Indigenous 69.8% 8,357,687 95.8% 10,287,676
Imported 0.2% 13,060 4.2% 447536
100.0% 8,370,747 100.0% 10,735,212

33. Expenditure in foreign currency

Travelling

Commission

Interest

Salary

Rates and taxes

Expenses Reimbursement

34. Value of imports on CIF basis

Raw materials
Spares & Consumables
Traded goods

35. Operating lease commitments

March 31, 2015

March 31,2014

480,486 68,851
237,173 596,269
391,384 312,617
651,000 -
525,198 .
177,655 -
2,462,896 977,737

March 31,2015

March 31,2014

108,055,039 156,184,197
123,407 476,605
71,451,081 113,018,150
179,629,527 269,678,952

The Company has entered into commercial leases on certain office premises. These leases have an average life of between three

and nine years.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Within one year 105,488,385 23,416,993
After one year but not more than five years 371,097,546 43,856,813
More than five years 86,599,355

14,837,153 -
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Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2015
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

37. Employee benefits

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five year of service
gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is non funded.

Defined benefit plans-as per Actuarial valuation 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Gratuity Gratuity
A Components of employer expenses
Current service cost 2,447,259 424,209
Interest cost 1,691,189 748,455
Actuarial (gain) /loss (2,290,382) 1,088,153
Past service cost - -
Total expenses 1,848,066 2,260,817
B Net asset / (liability ) recognised in the balance sheet as at 3lst
March 2015
Present value of obligation 19,145,305 11,505,921
Liability (19,145,305) (11,905,921)
C Change in the obligation during the year
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 19,668,633 11,136,709
year
Current service cost 2,447,259 424,209
Interest cost 1,691,189 748,455
Actuarial (gain) / loss (2,290,382) 1,088,153
Benefits paid (2,371,394) (1,491,605)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 19,145,305 11,905,921
D Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 8.00% 9.15%
Salary escalation 5.00% 6,00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuations take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
refevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

38. Accounting for Amalgamation

The Honorable High Court of Madras, on 27 March 2014, sanctioned a scheme of amalgamation (the scheme) under sections 391 to 394
of the Companies Act, 1956, In accordance with the scheme, Style Spa Furniture Limited {"SSFL"/ transferor company) merges with the
company with effect from 1 April 2014. The transferor company was engaged in the business of trading furniture. The amalgamation is
expected to channelize synergies and lead to better utilization of available resources and result in greater econotnies of scale.




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

In accordance with the High Court order, the Company has accounted for the scheme as below:
(i) The Company has taken over net liabilities aggregating to Rs. 86,292,126 as follows:

Particulars Amount
Assets

Tangible assets 27,798,336
Intangible assets 4,173,420
Capital work in progress 4,028,772
Long term loans and advances 49,683,856
Other non current assets 1,615,962
Short term loans and advances 12,100,015
Trade receivables ’ 31,941,892
Inventories 140,454,079
Cash and bank balances 64,611,589
Other current assets 661,784
Total 337,069,745
Liabilities

Long term borrowings 1,987,886
Long term provisions 6,967,116
Short term borrowings 10,905,938
Shott term provisions 118,665,884
Trade payables 220,222,733
Qther current liabilities 64,612,314
Total 423,361,871
Net liabilities taken over 86,292,126

(ii) All assets and ligbilities (including reserves, if any) of the transferor company (SSFL), have been recorded in the books of the
transferee company (IFPL), at their respective book values recorded in the books of SSFL.

(iii) 15 (Fifieen) Equity shares of IFPL of Rs.10 each (fully paid) shall be issued as consideration for every 14 (Fourteen) Equity shares
of Rs.10 (fully paid) of Style Spa Furniture Limited (SSFL) to the shareholders of SSFL.

(iv) The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued, plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other
assets, and the amount of share capital of the transferor company has been adjusted in reserves.

39, Loans given to Soundarya IFPL Interiors Limited (subsidiary)

Balance as at 31 March 2015 Rs. 7,000,000 (31 March 2014 Nil}
Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 7,000,000 (31 March 2014 Nif)
There is no repayment schedule in respect of this loan, It is repayable on demand.

40, Previous ycar comparatives
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year's classification.

As per our report of even date,

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Indian Furniture Products Limited
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP e e e o 01 87025

Chartored A tant No. 4, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, Taramani
ergd Accountants Chennai-60C 113, India

Tel : +91 44 6654 8100
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Fax ' +91 44 2254 0120

To the Members of Indian Furniture Products Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Indian Furniture Products
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary Soundaryaa IFPL
Interiors Limited (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”™),
comprising the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, the consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘the consolidated
financial statements’).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers .
internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has

in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s ...
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial> """

S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership wilh LLP identity Mo, AAB-4295
Reqgd. Office : 22, Camac Streat, Block *C', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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statements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph (a) of the Other Matters below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements,

Basis for qualified opinion

Loans and advances in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements include Rs, 112.5 million,
representing intercompany deposits and interest thereon upto March 31, 2010 recoverable from
Straight Curve Ideas Private Limited (“SCIPL”). As more fully discussed in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Holding Company has initiated legal proceedings against
SCIPL, and is confident of recovery of the amount outstanding, In view of the legal uncertainties
involved, we are unable to comment on the possible adjustments, if any, that may be required to be
made to the consolidated financial statements in this regard.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of consolidated the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2015, of their consolidated
profit/loss and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on the
comments in the auditor’s report of the Holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in India,
to whom the Order applies, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, to the extent applicable, we report that:

(a) We / the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon, have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) Except for the effects of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in
our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d) Except for the effects of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

(e) The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our oplmon may
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group; P if;«” o
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(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group’s companies incorporated in India is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act,

(g) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
1T of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on its consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii. Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, the Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India.

Other Matter

(a) The accompanying consclidated financial statements include total assets of Rs 88,877,822 as at
March 31, 2015, and total revenues and net cash outflows of Rs Nil and Rs 75,402,521
respectively for the year ended on that date, in respect of its subsidiary which have been audited
by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports
have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the repori(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements above, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial
information certified by the Management

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number 101049W

et
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et Al e
p r AmruddffSaukaran
Partner

Membership Number: 211107
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the section ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date

The Group referred herein comprises Indian Furniture Products Limited (‘Holding Company’) and its
subsidiary Soundaryaa IFPL Interiors Limited incorporated in India and to whom the provisions of the
Order apply (referred to as “the Covered entity” in this report)

i ()

(b)

(i) (a)

(b)

(c)

(i) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and as reported by the other
auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, the Group has
maintaibed proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets,

According to the information and explanations given to us and as reported by the other
auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, fixed assets have been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies
were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as reported by the other
auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, the management of
the Holding Company and the Covered entity has conducted physical verification of
inventory at reasonable intervals during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as reported by the other
auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, the procedures of
physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Holding Company and the Covered entity and the
nature of its business.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as reported by the other
auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, the Group is
maintaining proper records of inventory. Discrepancies noted on physical verification of
inventories were not material, and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The Holding Company has granted loans that are re-payable on demand, to a firm
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
loans granted are re-payable on demand. We are informed that the Holding Company has
not demanded repayment of any such loan during the vear, and thus, there has been no
default on the part of the parties to whom the money has been lent. The payment of
interest has been regular.

As reported by the other auditor of the subsidiary company, that company has’ not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii}(a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable to the covered entity
and hence not commented upon.

There is no overdue amount of loans granted to companies, firims or other parties llsted .
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, : T
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and as
reported by the other auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity,
there is'an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Group and
the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale
of goods and services. During the course of our audit and as reported by the other
anditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, no major weakness or
continuing failure to correct any major weakness in the internal control system of the
Holding Company and the Covered entity was observed in respect of these areas.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as reported by the other
auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, the Holdmg Company
and the Covered entity has not accepted any deposits from the public.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained and as reported by the other auditor who
audited the: financial statements of the Covered entity, the Central Government has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, for the products of the Group.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us Holding
Company-is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-{ax, service
tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it.
Undisputed statutory dues pertaining to sales-tax and value added tax have not generally
been regularly - depos1ted with the appropriate authorities though the delays in deposit
have not been serious,

As reportéd. by the Auditor of the subsidiary company, undlsputed dues relating to
income tax and other statutory dues applicable to that company have been deposited with
appropriate authorities and there have been delays, which are not material.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as reported by the other
auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, no undisputed
amounts -payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
wealth-tax, service tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dies were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the records of the Holding Company and the records of the Covered entity
as reported by other auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity,
the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty,
excise duty, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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(viii)

(d)

Statute Nature of | Amount (in | Period to | Forum where dispute
dues millions) which amount | is pending
relates
West Bengal | Sales Tax 1.97 2003-04 West Bengal
Sales Tax Act, Appellate and
1941 Revision Board
West Bengal | Value 0.74% 2006-07 Joint  Commissioner
Sales Tax Act, | added Tax (Appealsy
1941
Finance Act, | Service 0.00#%#* 2005-07 CESTAT
1994 Tax
Finance Act, Service 0.20 2004-11 Commissioner
1994 Tax {Appeals)
Finance Act, Service 291 2007-08 CESTAT
1994 Tax
West  Bengal | Sales Tax | 5.90 2004-05 Joint Commissioner,
Sales Tax Act, (Appeals)
1941
Uttar  Pradesh | Sales Tax | 0.27%%% 2012-13 Additional
Sales tax Act, -Commissioner,
1948 {Appeals)
West Bengal | Sales Tax 0.36 2001-02 Deputy
Sales Tax Act, Commissioner
1941 (Appeals)
West  Bengal | Sales Tax | 0.76 2003-04 " Revision board
Sales Tax Act,
1941 L
West  Bengal | Sales Tax | 0.39 2009-10 Commercial = Tax
Sales Tax Act, : Appellate Authority
1941 _ .
Kerala VAT | Sales Tax 1.69 #*+%% 1 2009-11 Deputy
Act, 2003 Commissioner .
{Appeals)

* Amount includes deposit made under protest- Rs. 0,74

*#¥* Amount includes deposit made under protest- Rs. 2.12

#¥** Amount includes deposit made under protest- Rs. 0.27
#x#x Amount includes deposit made under protest- Rs. (.47
#Hkx* All above amounts are pertaining to Holding Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as reported by the other
auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered entity, the provisions of
investor education and protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereunder are not applicable to the
Group.

Without considering the consequential effects, if any, of the matter(s) stated in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph of our auditors’ report, the Holding Company’s
accumulated losses at the end of the financial year are more than fifty percent of its net
worth and it has incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial
year. As reported by the other auditor who audited the financial statements of the

Covered entity, the Covered entity has been registered for a period of less than fi fve years.".”_ﬁ'
and accordingly, this clause is not applicable to that company. e i R

R
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we ate of the opinion that the Holding Company has not defaulfed in
repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

As reported by the other auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered
entity, the Covered entity did not have any outstanding dues in respect of a financial
institution, bank or debenture holders during the year

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company has
given guarantee for loans taken by others from banks, the terms and conditions whereof,
in our opinion, are not prima-facie prejudicial to the interest of the Holding Company.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company has not
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from financial institutions.

As reported by the other auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered
entity, the Covered entity has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from
bank or financial institutions.

Based on the information and explanations given to us by the management of the
Holding Company, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

As reported by the other auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered
entity, the Covered entity did not obtain any term loans during the year.

We have been informed by the management of the Holding Company that, during the
year under audit, there have been seven instances of fraud on the Holding Company in
the pature of misappropriation of funds and inventory aggregating Rs. 5,828,326, The
Holding Company has dismissed the employees and withheld their terminal benefits
amounting to Rs. 805,279, Investigations are in progress, pending which the Company
has made a provision for the balance amount of Rs. 5,023,047.

As reported by the other auditor who audited the financial statements of the Covered
entity, we report that no fraud on or by the Covered entity has been noticed or reported
during the year,

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number; 101049W

per Anirud
Partner

"

dh Sankaran

Membership Number: 211107

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015




Indian Furniture Products Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees unless otherwise stated )

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders funds

Share capitat

Reserve & Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
Long- term borrowings
Deferred tax liability (net)
Long- term: provisions

Current liabilities
Short - term borrowings
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Short term provisions

Total

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Fixed assets :
- (i) Tangible asset
(i) Intangible asset
Loans and advances
Other non current assets

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Cash and bank balances
Loans and advances
Other current assets

Total

Summary of significant accounting polices

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even’date,

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Flrm Registration number; 10 1049W
kil {/w‘”" ‘_)'w:,wfm ““““““

Athiruddh Sankarap.——"""

Partner

/ﬂpg/(l
rvesh Kumar’f}andhl
ole Time Director

As at
Notes March 31, 2015

3 700,994,700
(696,638,703)

4,355,997

5 44,688,882
6 26,522
7 16,934,502
61,649,906

8 530,271,488
9 284,019,966
10 302,391,245
7 15,906,714
1,132,589,413

1,198,595,316

n

1la 213,039,401
11b 4,518,124
12 60,582,939
13 8,627,906
286,768,370

14 486,016,904
15 131,163,043
16 140,622,781
12 153,291,920
17 732,298
911,826,946

1,198,595,316

22

For and on behalf of the Board of
Indian Furniture Products Limited

Ls}n,ﬂmf ﬁj//
R.S.Ragh

Director

Membership No:211107 i~ [W
Simi.S.S A.T.Su aran
Company Secretary Chief Financial officer

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2015

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2015
INCOME
Revenue from operations (gross) 1,435,594,911
Less: Excise duty (94,978,583)
Revenue from operations (net) 18 1,340,616,328
Other income 19 9,597,170
Total Revenue (A) 1,350,213,498
EXPENSES
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 20 334,161,625
Purchase of traded goods 20 257,440,616
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 21 28,191,021
Employee benefits expenses 22 259,353,386
Net depreciation and amortisation expenses 23 38,167,930
Finance costs 24 97,086,379
Other expenses 25 480,856,688
Total Expenses (B) 1,495,297,645
Earnings / (Deficit) before tax and exceptional (145,084,147)
items
A)-®
Loss before tax {145,084,147)
Tax expenses
Current tax -
Deferred tax charge/{credit) (26,522)
Share of Minority interest (1,249,990}
Loss for the year (143,860,679)
Earnings per share [Nominal value of share
Basic and diluted 26 (2.05)
Summary of significant accounting polices 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chariered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number: 101049W

‘—"/.

i
.w—"'a/ -
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For and on behalf of the Board of Indian
Furniture Products Limited

Gi_ A
_/-/ﬂ-i"“é’/ T Mo b ov
esh Kumar Gandhi R.8.Raghavan
Whole Time Director Director

Simi.8.8 A.T.Suth

Company Secretary Chief Financial officer

Aniruddh Sankaran
Partner
Membership No:211107

Place; Chennai
Date; April 28, 2015

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015



"Indian Furniture Products Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 315t March 2015

(All amounts are in Indian rupees unless otherwise stated )

_A. Cash flow from Operating Activities -
Net profit/(loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:

Year ended
March 31,2015

(143,834,157)

_B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets, including Intangible assets & Capital Advances

(Profit) / Loss on sale of fixed assets {net) 1,918,765
Depreciation /Amortisations on Tangible & Intangible Assets 38,167,930
Unrealised exchange difference (net) 5,853
Interest expense 76,156,419
Interest Income (2,931,036)
Bad debts/advances written off 6,909,089
Operating profit before working capital changes (23,607,137)
Adjustment for ;
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 43,835,086
(Increase)Decrease in Trade receivables 161,891,453
{(Increase)/Decrease in Short term Loans and advances (7,239,134)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long term Loans and advances 9,272,722
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables (164,794,369)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (6,446,556)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liabilities 155,614,725
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities and Provisions (4,385,252)
Cash generated from / {used in) operations 164,141,537
Direct taxes paid (2,447,908)
Net cash from / (used) in operating activities 161,693,629

(19,965,747)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1,310,304
Investment in bank deposit (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (32,541,354)
Interest received 2,931,036
Net cash from / (used) in investing activities (48,265,761)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Long term borrowings repaid (5,393,130)
Inter Corporate Deposit received 40,000,000
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net (42,190,028)
_Interest paid (76,156.419)
Net Cash flows from / (used) in Financing Activities (83,739,577}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)

29,688,291




Indian Furniture Products Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts are in Indian rupees unless otherwise stated )

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

_Components of cash and cash equivalents as at year end
Cash in hand

Balances with scheduled banks

- in current accounis

- in deposit accounts

Less: Deposits having a maturity of more than 3 months

As per our report of even date

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
- Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number: 601049\\/

Partner
‘Membership No:211107

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015

Year ended
March 31, 2015

78,393,136
108,081,427

4,374,823

102,693,419
33,554,539

140,622,781

(32,541,354}

108,081,427

For and on behalf of the Board of Indian Furniture
Products Limited

- / ; Q[.ﬁj??mé Iaotd
~4 gt {4

Pervésh Kumar Gandhi R.S.Ragh‘fi'@ﬁ‘lll
Whole Time Director Director

Simi.S. A.T.Sumu

Company Secretary Chief Financial officer

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2015




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

1, Deseription of the Group

Indian Farniture Products Limited ("IFPL" or "the Company") and its subsidiary, "Soundarya [FPL Interiors Limited", (collectively referred to as the
Group") are primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of furniture and execution of commercial interior works. The Company
is a subsidiary of Zuari Global Limited (Formerly Zuari Industries Limited).

Name of the entity Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus total Share in profif or loss
liabilities
As % of consolidated Amount As % of consolidated Amount
net assets profit or loss
Parent
Indian Furntiure Products Limited 2.84 12,368,553 0.94 (135,848,123)
Subsidiary
Indian
Soundarya IFPL Interiors Limited (1.84) (8,012,556) 0.06 (9,236,024)
Total 1.00 4,355,997 1.00 (145,084,147)

2. Basis of accounting

2.1 (a) Operational outlook

As at March 31, 2015, the Company's accumulated losses of Rs. 698,590,857 has nearly eroded approximately 99% of the sharcholders' funds of Rs.
706,328,100, Zuari Global Limited, the holding company, intends to provide financial and operational support in the foreseeable future to enable the
Company to operate and seitle its obligations as they become due. Management believes that its business plans for the future are profitable and
would strengthen the financial position of the Company in the coming years, The Company continues to focus its immediate efforts on developing a
healthy sales order pipeline and also effectively managing liquidity and financing requirements. Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern assumption and do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of carrying amounts of
assets and the amount of lishilities that might result shoufd the Company be unable to continue 4s a going concern.

2.1 (b) Amalgamation with Style Spa Furniture Limited
“The Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 23, 2013 approved the scheme of amalgamation of Style Spa Furntiure Limited ("SSFL") with
the Company with the appointed date as April 01, 2014 (*Scheme of Amalgamation’). The Scheme of Amalgamation was sanctioned by an order
dated March 27, 2014, of the High Coust of Judicature of Madras effective from Aprit 1, 2014, The Company has accounted for the merger as per
the terms of the scheme of amalgamation, as more fully disclosed in Note 31.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

“The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian
GAAP). The company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014, The financial statements have been
prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention,

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year except for the change in
accounting policy explained below,




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All. amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

b. Use of estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting period, Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

¢. Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumnulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
cost afributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cast.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-te-day repair and maintenance

expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

d. Depreciation on Fixed assets

Depreciation is provided as per the useful lives of the assets prescribed under schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 , as follows:

Block of Assets Useful lives
Buildings 31030
Plant and machinery 10t 15
Computers 3t b
Furniture and fittings 10
_Display Furniture 10
Office equipments 5
Electrical Installations 10
Vehicles 8to 10
Lease Hold Improvement 3
Software 3

_Intangible assets in the nature of computer software are amortised over three years on a straight-line basis based on management's estimates.

¢. Leases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments, Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as o achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining

 balance of the lability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and
other initia direct costs of lease are capitalized.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the company
will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset or the lease term,

‘Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating leases,
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. T




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2015
{All amounts sre in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

f. Inventories

Inventoties are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of various categories of inventories are determined as follows:

(a) Stores and spares, raw materials and packing materials: at moving weighted average basis,

{b) Work-in-progress and finished goods: Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
- operating capacity, Cost of finished goods includes excise duty, Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis,

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present focation and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

"g. Revenue recognition
Revenuse is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow o the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenues are stated net of sales tax, VAT and sales returns.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer,
~usually on the delivery of the goods. The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore,
these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Service income

Service income is recogtised as and when the services are performed using percentage of completion method.

.- Revenue from construction contracts

Revenue from the construction contracts is recognised based on the percentage of completion method, measured by cost of wark certified upto the
reporting date bear to the estimated total costs of the contract,

As the project execution is in the early stages no revenue has been recognised , cost of work certified has been considered as construction Work in
Progress, in line with AS-7

. Interest Income
Revenue is recagnised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

h. Foreign currency translation
(i) Initial recognition

Foreign cutrency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
-reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

(ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary jtems, which are measured

in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monstary items,

which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when
-such value was determined,

(iii) Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the setlement of monetary items or on teporting company's monetary items at rates different from those at which

they were initially recorded during the year , or reported in previous financial statement, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which
thay arise except those arising from investments in non- integral operation, / T

AN




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

i. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee
renders the related service, Contributions to the provident fund are made monthly at a predetermined rate.

_The company operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees, viz., gratuity scheme. The costs of providing benefits under this plan is
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each vear-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each plan using the projected unit credit
method. Actuarial gains and losses for hath defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit
and loss, Gratuity scheme is not funded.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit, The company measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects te pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
-reporting date. Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on
estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuariat valuation is done as per projected unit credit
method. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actoarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-
end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred, The company presents the entire Jeave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months afler reporting date.

j- Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Provision for current income tax is made on assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the
televant assessment year, Deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences between the
financial statement determination of income and their recognition for tax purposes.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent tat there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realised. If the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virfual
certainty supported by convineing evidenee that such defered tax assets can be realised against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent
that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviwed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax
asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which deferred tax assel can be realized, Any such write~down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually

certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available. B P




Indian Furniture Products Limited ‘
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

k. Segment Reporting

The Company considers business segment as its primary segment. The company's operations predominantly relates to sale of furnitures and
accordingly, this is the only primary reportable segment. The company considers geographical segment as its secondary segment. The company’s
operations are predominantly within India and accordingly this is the secondary reportable segment,

"1 Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

. m, Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the batance sheet date. These are reviewed at cach balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

_n, Warranty Provision - Product Warranty

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognized when the product is sold or service provided. Provision is based on historical experience. The
estimate of such warranty-related costs is revised annually. The Company gives warranty to products, undertaking to repair or replace the items that
fail to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Warranty provisions are made for expected future cash outflows and computed on total sales
rmade during the year based on past experience. No reimbursements are expecied,

. 0, Contingent liabilitics

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a lability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

p. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an eriginal
maturity of three months or less.

- v, Amalgamation accounting

The company treats an amalgamation in the nature of merger if it satisfies all the following criteria:

(i) Afl the assets and liabilities of the transferor company become, after amalgamation, the assets and liabilities of the transferee company.

(ii) Shareholders holding not less than 90% of the face value of the equity shares of the transferor company (other than the equity shares already held
therein, immediately before the amalgamation, by the transferee company or its subsidiaries or their nominees) become equity shareholders of the
transferee company.,

" (iff) The consideration for amalgamation receivable by those equity shareholders of the transferor company who agree to become shareholders of the
transferes company is discharged by the transferee company wholly by the issue of equity shares, except that cash may be paid in respect of any
fractional shares.

(iv) The business of the transferor company is intended to be carried on, after the amalgamation, by the transferee company.
{v) The transferee company does not intend to make any adjustment to the book values of the assets and Habilities of the transferor company, except
to ensure uniformity of accounting policies.

" All other amalgamations are in the nature of purchase,

The company accounts for all amalgamations in the nature of merger using the pooling of interest method. The application of this method requires
the company to recognize any non-cash element of the consideration at fair value. The company recognizes assets, liabilities and reserves, whether
capital or revenue, of the transferor company at their existing carrying amounts and in (he same form as at the date of the amalgamation. The balance
in the statement of profit and loss of the transferor compary is transferred to the general reserve. The difference between the amount recorded as
share capital issued, plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets, and the amount of share capital of the transferor company
is adjusted in reserves,

An amalgamation in the nature of purchase is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition/ amalgamation is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value. Other aspects of accounting are as below:
(i) The assets and liabilities of the transferor company are recognized at their fair values at the date of amalgamation. The reserves, whether capital or
tevene, of the transferor company, except statutory reserves, are not recognized.

(i) Any excess consideration over the value of the net assets of the transferor company acquired is recognized as goodwill, If the amount of the
consideration is lower than the value of the net assets acquired, the difference is treated as capital reserve.
(iif) The goodwill arising ot amalgamation is amortized to the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over its useful life not exceeding five

3. Share capital

March 31, 2015
Authorised shares
-72,600,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 726,000,000
1,130,220 preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 113,022,000
839,022,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

70,099,470 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid 700,994,700
up

Total issued, subseribed and fully paid-up share 700,994,700

capital




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise}

"a, Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

March 31, 2015

Particulars No. of shares Amount in Rs.

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 46,500,080 465,000,800
Issued during the year 23,599,390 235,993,900
_Qutstanding at the end of the year 70,099,470 100,994,700

Note: March 31, 2014 includes 10,000,000 equity shares issued during the year, pursuant to conversion of Inter-corporate deposits from M/s Zuari
Global Limited aggregating Rs.100,000,000 in to equity share capital..

The shares issued during the year have been issued pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation as referred to in Note 2.2
b. Terms / Rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having par vatue of Rs,10 per share, Bach holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

¢. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates and shareholders holding more than 5% shares in
"the Company

March 31, 2015
Name of the Sharcholder No. of shares Amount in Rs,

Zuari Global Limited (formerly Zuari Industries

Limited) (72.45%) 50,785,714 507,857,140
Zuari Investment Ltd (10.05%) 7,044,643 70,446,430
Adventz Investment Company Private Limited
(10.09%) 7,071,429 70,714,290
Others (7.41%) 5,197,684 51,976,840

70,099.470 700,994,700

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

d, Aggregate number of shares issued for

consideration other than cash March 31, 2015

Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to amalgamation for 23,599,390
consideration other than cash

23,599,390




Indian Furnitare Products Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

4. Reserves and surplus

“Securities premium account
Balance as per the last financial statements

(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per the last financial statements

‘Net Joss for the current year

Net deficit in the statement of profit and loss

5. Long- term liabilities and borrowings

a. Term loans from banks
b. Working capital term loan (secured)
Deferred sales tax loan

Amount disclosed under the head “other current

liabilities" (note 10)

March 31, 2015

5,333,400

(538,111,424)

(143,860,679)

(696,638,703)

March 31, 2015

Non current portion Current portion

5,371,539 3,600,000
34,374,999 12,500,000
4,942,344 11,276,786
- (27,376,786}
44,688,882 -

Deferred sales tax scheme is interest free and payable in 96 monthly Instalments of amounts, which varies from month to month based on the actual

liability. The repayment had started from May 2008 onwards,

Term loan from bank was taken during the year 2011-12 and carries an annual Interest @13.50% - 13.75% [previous year 13.75%] . The loan is

repayable in 48 equal instalments starting from April 2012 onwards, The term loan is secured against first charge on the immovable and movable
- fixed asset purchased and constructed under the term loan. The loan is atso secured by hypothecation of entire inventory and trade receivables of the

Company. Further, the loan has been guaranieed by corporate guarantee of M/s.Zuari Global Eimited (Formerly M/s Zuari Industries Limited).

Working Capital Term Loan ("WCTL") from Axis bank was taken during the March 2014, and carries an annual Interest @13.50% - 14.00%. The
loan is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalment of Rs.1.04 million starting from January 2015. The WCLT is secured against paripasu first charge
with Ramakar bank over the entire Current Assets of the company, both present and future, first charge over the movable fixed assets of the company
funded out of Axis Bank Term Loan (Second Paripassu charge will be ceded to secure WC Limit). Further, the loan has been guaranteed by
_corpotate guarantee of M/s. Zuari Global Limited (Formerly M/s.Zuari Industries Limited), the holding company.

6. Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of the difference between income

- tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization

Deferred tax asset

Impact of expenditure charged to statement of Profit
and Loss In the current year but allowed for tax

purposes o1 payment basis
Provision for warranties

Deferred tax liability (Net)

March 31, 2015

2,238,908

2,238,908

1,962,364

250,022
2,212,386

26,522




- Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2013
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated
otherwise)

The group follows Accounting Standard (AS 22) “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, as notified by Company Accounting Standards Rules, 2006.
Due to losses, the parent company has deferred tax asset with unabsorbed depreciation as a major component. However, deferred tax asset has been
consider as nil and has been recognized only to the extent of deferred tax liability, since there is no convineing evidence which demonstrates virtual
certainty of realization of such deferred tax asset in the near future, accordingly the Company has prudently decided not to recognize deferred tax
asset on such timing differences.

7. Provisions

March 31, 2015
Long Term Short Term

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (Also refer note 32) 16,934,502 2,210,803

Provision for leave benefits - 12,886,779

16,934,502 15,097,582

Other provisions

Provision for warranties - 809,132
' 16,934,502 15,906,714

Movement in proyision for warranty

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year 869,000

Add: Additions 809,132
‘Less: Amount utilised during the year and reversal of .

provision made 869,000

Balance at the end of the period 809,132

8. Short term borrowings

March 31, 2015

a, Cash ctedit from bank {secured) 378,639,972

- From Others 140,000,000

¢) Buyers Credit (Secured) §1,631,516

530,271,488

- The above amount includes
Cash credit from bank is secured against security on stocks and book debts and fixed assets as collateral, The cash credit is repayable on demand and
carries interest @ 13.75% p.a

The Company had received an inter cotporate deposit from M/s, Simon India Limited of Rs. 100,000,000 and M/s/ Duke Commerce Limifed of Rs.
40,000,000 @ 13.5% interest in the year 2010-11 and the loan is repayable on demand.

Company has taken buyers credit for the import LC payment. Each BC will be payable to the huyers credit party with different agreed date along
“with interest. Buyers credit is secured against first paripasu charges on all current Assets of the company, both present and future. First paripasu
charpe on all movable fixed assets (except vehicles & movable fixed assets funded out of term Loan from Axis bank) of the company , both present
and future. First pari passu charge on Land and factory building of the company located at G-106, SIDCQ Industrial estte, Kakkatur, Tiruvallur,
Tamilnady. Second paripasu charge on movable fixed assets funded out of term lean from Axis Bank Ltd. Further, the loan has been Guranteed by
Unconditional and Trrecoverable corporate gurantee of M/S Zuari Global Limited (Formerly M/s.Zuari Industries Limited),the holding company.
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- Nofes to the Consolidated Financial Statementis for the year ended March 31, 2015

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated
otherwise)

9. Trade payables

Trade payables
“{Refer Note 27 for details of dues to micro, small and
Medium enterprises)

10, Other current liabilities

‘ Current matuorities of long-term borrowings (Refer
it;térc;;: accrued and due on borrowings
Advances received from customers
Advances received for sale of land
Security deposits from dealers and employees
“TDS payable
Excise & service tax payable
Employee related payables
Sales Tax and VAT

12. Loans and advances { Unsecured, considered good)

) Security Deposit
(A)

Inter Corporate Deposit (Refer Note 28)
®)

_Advances recoverable in cash or kind

©

Advance income tax (net of provision for tax)
Prepaid expenses

Loans to employee
Balances with customs, port frust and excise
- authorities

D)
Total (A+B+C+D)

13. Other non - current assets

Non-Current Bank Balances

March 31, 2015

284,019,966

284,019,966

March 31, 2015

27,376,786
3,552,730
101,392,226
70,000,000
34,279,815
2,608,990
19,803,483
28,692,713
14,684,502

302,391,245

March 31, 2015

Non current Current

50,949,615 3,990,809

50,949,615 3,990,809

- 112,500,000

- 112,500,000

15,412,029

- 15,412,029

9,633,324 1,967,000
- 11,879,319
- 639,432
- 6,903,331

9,633,324 21,389,082

60,582,939 153,291,920

March 31,2018

8,627,906

8,627,906

]



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated

otherwise)

14. Inventories

March 31,2015
Raw materials 60,174,271
- Work-in-progress 6,821,431
Finished goods 171,148,109
Traded goods 231,059,434
Stores and spares 15,805,970
Packing materials 1,007,689
486,016,904
15. Trade receivables
March 31, 2015
Qut standing for a period exceeding six months
_from the date they are due for payment
Considered good, (Secured) 726,148
Considered good, (Unsecured) 19,234,018
Considered Doubtful, {(Unsecured) 3,600,703
(A) 23,560,869
Other debts
Considered good, (Secured) 6,739,601
- Considered good, (Unsecured) 104,463,276
(B) 111,202,877
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables {C) (3,600,703)
Total (A+B+C) 131,163,043
16, Cash and bank balances
- March 31, 2015
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks:
On Current accounts 93,278,802
Cheques / draft on hand 9.414,617
Cash on hand 4,374,823
107,068,242
" Other bank balances
- Margin money deposits 9,641,091
- Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 31,197,812
- Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 1,343,543
149,250,687
 Amount disclosed under non-current assets (Note 13) (8,627,906)

140,622,781

Margin money deposits given as security
Margin money deposits with carrying amount of Rs.9,641,091 are subjeet to first charge to secure the Company's bank guarantee.

-17. Other Current Assets

March 31, 2015

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 732,258
732,298
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Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

“18. Revenue from operations

Manufacturing sales

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2015

892,596,862

Traded sales 539,447,073
Service income 1,398,408
‘Other operating Revenue

Scrap sales 2,152,568

Revenue from operations {Gross)

Less: Excise duty#

1,435,594,911

94,978,383

1,340,616,328

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs. 94,978,583 has been reduced from sales in the statement of profit and loss and excise
duty on increase and decrease in stock amounting to Rs.2,769,309 has been considered as (increase)/decrease stock.

19. Other income

March 31, 2015
Interest incomne 2,931,036
Other Non-operating income 6,666,134
9,597,170

20. Cost of raw material and components consumed

Raw materials consumed:

March 31, 2015

Opening stock 79,499,877
Add : Purchases 286,518,701
Less: Closing stock 61,090,934
304,927,644
"Packing materials consumed:
Opening stock 1,117,021
Add : Purchases 29,124,649
Less: Closing stock 1,007,689
29,233,981
334,161,625
Details of purchase of traded goods
March 31, 2015
Furniture and accessories 257,440,616

257,440,616




Indian Furniture Produets Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

21. (Increase)/decrease in inventories

March 31, 2015
"Inventory at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 5,904,767
Traded goods 231,059,434
Finished goods 171,148,109
Excise duty on finished goods 8,925,060
417,037,370
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Manufacturing work-in-progress 448,742
Traded goods 252,782,054
Finished goods 180,303,226
Excise duty on finished goods 11,654,369
445,228,391
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 28,191,621
22. Employee benefits expenses

March 31, 2015
Salaries, wages, bonus and allowances 234,603,640
Contribution to provident and other funds 11,760,557
Gratuity expense (Also refer Note 32) 1,848,064
Staff welfare expenses 11,141,125
259,353,386

23. Depreciation and amortisation expenses

March 31, 2015
Depreciation of tangible assets 34,446,682
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,721,248
38,167,930

24, Finance cost
March 31, 2015
Interest

- to banks 59,737,141
- to others 16,419,278
‘Bank charges 20,929,960

97,086,379




Indian Furniture Products Limited
"Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

25. Other expenses

March 31, 2015
Power, fuel and water 33,227,361
Stores and consumables 8,370,748
"Repairs and maintenance:
Buildings 1,327,619
Plant and machinery 2,788,152
Others 23,014,283
Outward freight and handling 94,474,126
Commission 10,698,932
‘Rent 156,827,179
Bad debts / advances written off 6,909,089
Rates and taxes 12,226,180
Insurance 8,893,045
Travel 21,531,624
Legal and Professional Charges 7,039,439
-Payment to auditors (Refer details below) 1,310,960
Communication expenses 8,173,600
Advertisement 69,924,174
Provision for warranties 809,132
Loss on foreign exchange (net) 336,302
T.oss on sale of fixed asset (net) 1,918,765
-Miscellanieous expenses 11,095,978

480,896,688

Payment to auditor March 31, 2015

As auditor:

- - Statutory audit fees 1,011,240
- Tax audit fees 224,720
- Out of pocket expenses 75,000

1,310,960

,:_F_



Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

26. Earnings / (Loss) per share

March 31, 2015
Loss after tax (143,860,678.78)
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 10 each 70,09%,470.00
Basic and diluted loss per share (2.05)

27. Disclosures on Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

There are no dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises which are out standing for more than 45 days as at Balance Sheet
date and no interest has been paid to any such parties during the year. This is based on the information available with the
Company.

28. The Company had placed on January 1, 2009, a short term intercorporate Deposit (ICD) amounting to Rs 100 million for a
period of 3 months with M/s Straight Curve Ideas Private Ltd (Straight Curve). The deposit carried an interest rate of 15% p.a
and out of the aggregate interest accrued from inception of deposit to March 31, 2010 of Rs. 18,328,767 Straight Curve has
made payments (including Tax Deducted at Source) aggregating to Rs.5,828,767. On account of the continuing default by
Straight Curve in respect of payment of principal and interest, the Company has suspended accruing for further interest with
effect from April 1, 2010, Further the Company has initiated legal proceedings for the recovery of the outstanding amount.
The Company is of the view that based on the actions initiated, personal guarantee provided by one of the directors of Straight
Curve and pledge of shares of straight curve obtained as security, the amount outstanding is fully recoverable and hence, no

provision had been made in the financial statements in this regard.

29, Contingent liabilities

Statute Nature of Amount (In Period to which the Forum where the
dues Millions) amount relates dispute is pending
West Bengal Sales tax Act, 1941 Sales tax 1.97 2003-2004 West Bengal Appellate
) and revision Board

West Bengal Sales tax Act, 1941 Value added 0.74% 2006-2007 Joint Commissioner
tax ' (Appeals)

West Bengal Sales Tax Act 1941 | Value added 0.36 2001-02 Deputy  Commissioner
tax ' {Appeals)

West Bengal Sales Tax Act 1941 [ Value added 0.76 2003-04 Revision Board
tax

West Bengal Sales Tax Act 1941 | Value added 5.90 2004-05 Joint Commissioner,
tax ' (Appeals)

West Bengal Sales Tax Act 1941 | Value added 0.39 2009-10 Commercial Tax
tax ' Appellate Authority

Kerala Vat Act, 2003 Value added | GokrRk 2009-11 Deputy Commissioner
tax ' {Appeals)

Uttar Pradesh Sales Act, 19438 Value added 0074+ 2012-13 Additional Commissioner
tax ' (Appeals)

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.00** 20052007 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.20 2004 2011 Commissioner (Appeals)

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 2.91 2007-08 CESTAT

* Amount includes deposits made under protest - Rs, (.74 Million
** Amount includes deposits made under protest - Rs. 2.12 Million
*** Includes Amount paid under protest : Rs, 0.03 Million
#k*Incliudes amount paid under protest : Rs.0.47 Million




Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

The Company is contesting the demands raised by the respective tax authorities and the management, including its tax
advisers, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process and ultimate outcome of these proceedings will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

“There are no litigations, the outcome of which is considered probable and hence no provision has been made in this regard.

30. Operating lease commitments
The Company has entered into commercial leases on certain office premises. These leases have an average life of between

three and nine years,

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2015
Within one year 105,488,385
After one year but not more than five years 371,097,546
More than five years 86_,599_,355
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Indian Furniture Products Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2015
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless stated otherwise)

32. Employee benefits

The Company has a défined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five year
of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is non
funded.

Defined benefit plans-as per Actuarial valuation 31-Mar-15
Gratuity
A Components of employer expenses

Current service cost 2,447,259
Interest cost 1,691,189
Actuarial (gain) /loss (2,290,382)
Past service cost -
Total expenses 1,848,066

Net asset / (liability ) recognised in the balance sheet as at

B 31st March 2015
Present value of obligation 19,145,305
Liability (19,145,303)
C Change in the obligation during the year
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning 19,668,633
of the year
Current service cost 2,447,259
Interest cost 1,691,189
Actuarial {gain) / loss (2,290,382)
Benefits paid (2,371,393)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the y 19,145,305
D Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 8.00%
Salary escalation 6.00%
Attrition rate 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuations take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.




33. Accounting for Amalgamation

The Honorable High Court of Madras, on 27 March 2014, sanctioned a scheme of amalgamation (the scheme) under sections
391 to 394 of the Companies Act,.1956, In accordance with the scheme, Style Spa Furniture Limited ("SSFL"/ transferor
company) merged with the company with effect from 1 April 2014, The transferor company was engaged in the business of
trading furniture. The amalgamation is expected to channelize synergies and lead to better utilization of available resources and
result in greater economies of scale.

In accordance with the High Court order, the Company has accounted for the scheme as below:

Particulars Amount
Assets

Tangible assets 27,798,336
Intangible assets 4,173,420
Capital work in progress 4,028,772
Long term loans and advances 49,683,896
Other non current assets 1,615,962
Short term loans and advances 12,100,015
Trade receivables 31,941,892
Inventories 140,454,079
Cash and bank balances 64,611,589
Other current assets 661,784
Total 337,069,745
Liabilities

Long term borrowings 1,987,886
Long term provisions 6,967,116
Short term borrowings 10,905,938
Short term provisions 118,665,884
Trade payables 220,222,733
Other current liabilities 64,612,314
Total 423,361,871
Net liabilities taken over 86,292,126

(if) All assets and liabilities (including reserves, if any) of the transferor company (SSFL), have been recorded in the books of

the transferee company (IFPL), at their respective book values recorded in the books of SSFL.

(iii) 15 (Fifteen) Equity shares of [FPL of Rs.10 each (fully paid) shall be issucd as consideration for every 14 (Fourteen)} Equity

shares of Rs. 10 (fully paid) of Style Spa Furniture Limited (SSFL) to the shareholders of SSFL.

(iv) The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued, plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or

other assets, and the amount of share capital of the transferor company has been adjusted in reserves.




34. Previous year comparatives

Since this is the first year of preparation of consolidated financial statements, these financial statements do not include

comparative figures for the prior years.
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